
CAPSULE SUMMARY SHEET 

Survey No.: M:32-11 Construction Date: 1931-circa 1955 

Name: North Hills of Sligo Park 

Location: Bounded by Granvil! Drive, Colesville Road, and Brunett Avenue, Four Corners vicinity, Montgomery County 

Private Ownership I Present Use: Private Residence I Occupied I Condition: Good I Restricted Access 

Description: 

The residential subdivision of North Hills of Sligo Park is located in the Four Corners vicinity of Montgomery County. North 
Hills of Sligo Park was developed by E. Brooke Lee, president of the North Washington Realty Company, in 1931. The 
development continued the grid pattern of streets established by the 1926 plat of Argyle Park, located to the north and west 
of the North Hills of Sligo Park. The street pattern becomes increasingly curvilinear as the community extends south. Along 
these streets were platted over 200 building lots in three sections between 1931 and the early 1940s. The community was 
developed on land purchased from Victor Brunett in 1930. The land first passed into the Brunett family in the early 1860s 
and a large Gothic Revival house was constructed by Louis Brunett between 1860 and 1863. E. Brooke Lee used the house 
as the centerpiece of his new development and used its image in advertising campaign. The house also served as offices for 
the real estate company. The subdivision was platted with lot sizes of between 5000 and 9800 square feet. The streets 
were paved, though no curbing or streetlights were provided. Curbs were later added to some streets. North Hills of Sligo 
Park also lacked parkland or other public amenities. The large lots and expensive houses constructed by the North 
Washington Realty Company were difficult to sell during the Depression years with many lots remaining unsold. Eventually 
the bank had to foreclose on the North Hills of Sligo Creek properties. By 1941, only 90 houses had been constructed, and 
only three-quarters of the development had been completed by 1948. 

Significance: 

The community was developed by E. Brooke Lee, through the North Washington Realty Company. E. Brooke Lee was a Silver 
Spring native whose family owned a substantial amount of land in southern Montgomery County. Lee introduced the legislation 
establishing the Maryland-National Capital Park & Planning Commission, helped draft the Capper-Cramton legislation, and 
worked with the State Roads Commissions to develop new thoroughfares in the county. The North Washington Realty Company 
was Lee's real estate and building firm, however, he formed and built under a number of corporations to protect each subdivision 
from the failure of another. These included: the North City Land Company, Sligo Park Development Company, the Silver Spring 
Investment Company, and the Fairway Land Company. Lee was involved in the subdivision of land and home construction in 
more than half of the subdivisions platted in Silver Spring throughout the 1920s and early 1930s. He did not build all of the 
houses in the subdivisions he platted, though the North Washington Realty Company had established fifteen house designs that 
could be built in a number of subdivisions (Secrist 57-61 ). 

Although the North Washington Realty Company is responsible for the design and construction of some houses within the North 
Hills of Sligo Park, the architects for most of the houses are not known. The models are variations on basic house designs 
constructed around many cities in the early to mid-twentieth century. The houses closely resemble the residences in the nearby 
developments of Argyle Park, Argyle Club Forest, Fairway, Sligo Park Knolls, Woodside Park, and Greenacres, among many 
others located elsewhere in the Washington, D.C. suburbs. The houses represent Colonial Revival designs modified for modest 
house designs. The residences possess the building form and some features of the Colonial Revival style, but on a smaller scale 
and with inexpensive modern materials, such as molded door surrounds and metal casement windows. The community is 
identical to hundreds of other developments constructed on the periphery of cities during the early to mid-twentieth century. 
The construction of this specific development does not represent a historic trend that made a significant contribution to the 
development of the nation, state, or community. The development does not possess distinctive design features or innovative 
concepts that would distinguish this development from others. The community does not include significant elements of 
architecture, landscape architecture, engineering, or artwork. It is a simple and prevalent community of modest structures with 
Colonial Revival and modern influences. The modest structures have a reserved use of architectural detail, therefore integrity of 
the individual resources is critical. Many of the houses in the community have replacement windows and additions. The 
community lacks comprehensive design features such as public space, ceremonial entrances, pathways, or original streetlights. 

Preparer: 
KCI Technologies, Inc. 
January 2000 



Survey No. M:32-11 

Maryland Historical Trust DOE Dyes D no 

Maryland Inventory of Historic Properties 

1. Name (indicate preferred name) 

historic North Hills of Sligo Park (Preferred) 

and/or common 

2. Location 
street & number: Bounded by Granvil! Drive, Colesville Road, and Brunett Avenue· 

city, town Silver Spring, vicinity of Silver Spring 

state Maryland 

3. Classification 
Category 
18:1 district 
D building(s) 
D structure 
D site 
D object 

Ownership 
D public 
18:1 private 
D both 
Public Acquisition 
D in process 
D being considered 
18:1 not applicable 

Status 
18:1 occupied 
D unoccupied 
D work in progress 
Accessible 
18:1 yes: restricted 
D yes: unrestricted 
D no 

Present Use 
D agriculture 
D commercial 
D educational 
D entertainment 
D government 
D industrial 
D military 

4. Owner of Property (give names and mailing addresses of all owners) 

name Multiple Owners 

street & number: 

city, town 

5. Location of Legal Description 
courthouse, registry of deeds, etc. Montgomery County Judicial Center 

street & number 50 Maryland Avenue 

city, town Rockville 

6. Representation in Existing Historical Surveys 
title 

D not for publication 

congressional district 

county Montgomery 

D museum 
D park 
18:1 private residence 
D religious 
D scientific 
D transportation 
D other: 

telephone no.: 

state and zip code: 

liber: 

folio: 

state Maryland 

date D federal D state D county D local 

depository for survey records 

city, town state 



7. Description 
Condition 
D excellent 
!8l good 

D deteriorated 
D ruins 

Resource Count: approx. 200 

Check one 
D unaltered 
!8l altered 

Survey No. M:32-11 

Check one 
!8l original site 
D moved date of move 

Prepare both a summary paragraph and a general description of the resource and its various elements as it exists today. 

The residential subdivision of North Hills of Sligo Park is located in the Four Corners vicinity of Montgomery County. North 
Hills of Sligo Park is one of several residential subdivisions platted along Forest Glen Road in the Four Corners vicinity 
between the late 1920s and the early 1950s. Developers and home buyers were attracted to this area because of the easy 
access into the District of Columbia and the numerous recreation amenities, including the Silver Spring Branch of the Boy's 
and Girl's Club, Sligo Creek Parkway, the Argyle Country Club, and the Indian Springs Country Club. 

A number of subdivisions were constructed by various developers on the north side of Forest Glen Road in the late 1940s 
and early 1950s. It was not unusual for streets within a subdivision to end abruptly, since developers anticipated the streets 
being continued by the next subdivision or during the next phase of house construction. As such, it is common for roads to 
extend through several subdivisions even though there is no relationship between the developers. North Hills of Sligo Park 
was developed by E. Brooke Lee, president of the North Washington Realty Company, in 1931. The development 
continued the grid pattern of streets established by the 1926 plat of Argyle Park, located to the north and west of the North 
Hills of Sligo Park. The street pattern becomes increasingly curvilinear as the community extends south. Along these 
streets were platted over 200 building lots in three sections between 1931 and the early 1940s. The community was 
developed on land purchased from Victor Brunett in 1930. The land first passed into the Brunett family in the early 1860s 
and a large Gothic Revival house was constructed by Louis Brunett between 1860 and 1863. E. Brooke Lee used the 
house as the centerpiece of his new development and used its image in advertising campaign. The house also served as 
offices for the real estate company. 

The subdivision was platted with lot sizes of between 5000 and 9800 square feet. The streets were paved, though no 
curbing or streetlights were provided. Curbs were later added to some streets. North Hills of Sligo Park also lacked 
parkland or other public amenities. The large lots and expensive houses constructed by the North Washington Realty 
Company were difficult to sell during the Depression years with many lots remaining unsold. Eventually the bank had to 
foreclose on the North Hills of Sligo Creek properties. By 1941, only 90 houses had been constructed, and only three­
quarters of the development had been completed by 1948. 

Dwelling Types: North Hills of Sligo Creek contains a variety of suburban building styles. The most common styles are 
Colonial Revival with both 2-story and 1-story versions. 

Colonial Revival. 2-storv: Most of the residences were constructed in the Colonial Revival style. A typical example of the 
prevalent 2-story Colonial Revival-style model has 3-bays with a central entrance and a brick exterior. One of the gable 
ends has a semi-exterior brick chimney. The entrance has a Colonial Revival door surround consisting of fluted pilasters 
often topped by a triangular or broken pediment with dentil molding. The original windows are wood 6/6 double-hung, 
though many have been replaced by vinyl units. A feature common to all of these residences is a small casment or double­
hung window centered on the second story above the entrance. Though side porches were not standard on this model, 
many have been added. Some sub-types of this model include examples with small entry porches, full-height porticos, and 
Tudor Revival detailing. Examples: 9619 Brunett Avenue, owner: Todd and Dawn Harris (See Photo 24 of 27), and 9602 
Sutherland Road, owner Douglas and S.W. Taylor (See Photo 25 of 27). 

Colonial Revival. 1-story: The 1-story model constructed within North Hills of Sligo Park is a mid-twentieth century suburban 
building form with Revival-style details. The buildings form is created by the intersection of a principal low-pitched side­
gable roof with a projecting front-gable section. The houses are typically constructed of brick and may have a front porch. 
The windows are double-hung with picture and bay windows common. Examples: 9518 Bruce Drive, owner: H.F. and E.G. 
Stegman (See Photo 26 of 27), and 9404 Thornhill Road, owner: Bruce Drake (See Photo 27 of 27). 



8. Significance Survey No. M:32-11 

Period Areas of Significance - Check and justify below 
D prehistoric D archaeology-prehistoric 
D 1400-1499 D archeology-historic 
D 1500-1599 D agriculture 
D 1600-1699 D architecture 
D 1700-1799 Dart 
D 1800-1899 D commerce 
18] 1900- D communications 

D invention 

Specific Dates 1931-circa 1955 

check: Applicable Criteria: 
and/or 

Applicable Exception: 

Level of Significance: 

DA DB 

DA DB 

D national 

D community planning 
D conservation 
D economics 
D education 
D engineering 
D exploration/settlement 
D industry 

D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 
D 

landscape architecture 
law 
literature 
military 

D religion 
D science 
D sculpture 
D social/ 

music humanitarian 
philosophy D theater 
politics/government D transportation 

D other (specify) 

Builder Architect North Washington Realty Company 

D c DD 

De Do DE OF DG 
D state D local 

Prepare both a summary paragraph of significance and a general statement of history and support 

The communit~ of North Hills of Sligo Park is located in the vicinity of Four Corners, Montgomery County. Four Corners 
began as a 19 -century agricultural community located at the crossroads of Bladensburg and Colesville Roads. The 
community remained rural until the post-World War I building boom in suburban Montgomery County. Beginning in the late 
1930s, Four Corners saw the development of Northwood Park, Woodmoor, Indian Spring Village, Indian Spring Terrace, 
North Hills of Sligo Park, and Fairway, among others. These subdivisions expanded between 1945 and 1955 even as new 
ones, such as Northwood and Franklin Knolls, were constructed. The single-family house subdivisions that soon surrounded 
Four Corners had winding streets that formed an irregular grid in between major roads. Commercial establishments lined 
Bladensburg Road (now University Boulevard) and Colesville Road. The Woodmoor Shopping Center, established in 1946, is 
one landmark of the community. Four Corners was largely developed by the late 1950s. 

North Hills of Sligo Park was developed by the North Washington Development Company in three sections beginning in 1931. 
The sale of large lots and expensive homes for affluent buyers proved to be too great a challenge for the realty company 
during the depression years. Most lots were unsold by 1935 and the bank was forced to foreclose on the undeveloped lots 
within the community. Despite this, the community continued to slowly develop throughout the 1930s and 1940s. By 1948, 
three-quarters of the lots had been improved by houses. 

The community was developed by E. Brooke Lee, through the North Washington Realty Company. E. Brooke Lee was a 
Silver Spring native whose family owned a substantial amount of land in southern Montgomery County. Like his father, he 
entered politics and influenced the development of the county through policy and administration. Lee introduced the 
legislation establishing the Maryland-National Capital Park & Planning Commission, helped draft the Capper-Cramton 
legislation, and worked with the State Roads Commissions to develop new thoroughfares in the county (Secrist, 57-58). 

The North Washington Realty Company was Lee's own real estate and building firm, however, he formed and built under a 
number of corporations to protect each subdivision from the failure of another. These included: the North City Land Company, 
Sligo Park Development Company, the Silver Spring Investment Company, and the Fairway Land Company. Lee was 
involved in the subdivision of land and home construction in more than half of the subdivisions platted in Silver Spring 
throughout the 1920s and early 1930s. He did not build all of the houses in the subdivisions he platted, though the North 
Washington Realty Company had established fifteen house designs that could be built in a number of subdivisions (Secrist 
60-61 ) . 

. ~ Although the North Washington Realty Company is responsible for the design and construction of some houses within the 
North Hills of Sligo Park, the architects for most of the houses are not known. The models are variations on basic house 



CONTINUATION SHEET 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
,~ STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM 

RESOURCE NAME: North Hills of Sligo Park 
SURVEY NO.: M:32-11 
ADDRESS: Bounded by Granvil! Drive, Colesville Road, and Brunett Avenue, Four Corners vicinity, Montgomery County 

8. Significance (Continued) 

designs constructed around many cities in the early to mid-twentieth century. The houses closely resemble the residences in 
the nearby developments of Argyle Park, Argyle Club Forest, Fairway, Sligo Park Knolls, Woodside Park, and Greenacres, 
among many others located elsewhere in the Washington, D.C. suburbs. The houses represent Colonial Revival designs 
modified for modest house designs. The residences possess the building form and some features of the Colonial Revival 
style, but on a smaller scale and with inexpensive modern materials, such as molded door surrounds and metal casement 
windows. 

National Register Evaluation: 

Character-defining elements for Planned Suburban Developments, as defined in the 1-495/1-95 Capital Beltway Corridor 
Transportation Improvement Study, include 1) concentration of historically or aesthetically-cohesive buildings; 2) community 
design with planned landscape and public amenities; 3) single period of construction; 4) architecturally-significant suburban 
building types. To be considered eligible for the National Register of Historic Places, Planned Suburban Developments must 
possess excellent integrity of all character-defining elements. North Hills of Sligo Park does not contain public amenities or a 
planned landscape design and does not possess architecturally-significant suburban building types. 

!""""""" Constructed between 1931 and the early 1950s, North Hills of Sligo Park is not eligible for the National Register of Historic 
Places. The property is not eligible for the National Register do to the ubiquitous nature of the resource. The community is 
identical to hundreds of other developments constructed on the periphery of cities during the early to mid-twentieth century. The 
construction of this specific development does not represent a historic trend that made a significant contribution to the 
development of the nation, state, or community. The development does not possess distinctive design features or innovative 
concepts that would distinguish this development from others, and therefore is not eligible under Criterion A. Historic research 
indicates that the community has no association with persons who have made specific contributions to history, and therefore, it 
does not meet Criterion B. It is not eligible under Criterion C, as the community does not include significant elements of 
architecture, landscape architecture, engineering, or artwork. It is a simple and prevalent community of modest structures with 
Colonial Revival and modem influences. The modest structures have a reserved use of architectural detail, therefore integrity of the 
individual resources is critical. Many of the houses in the community have replacement windows and additions. The community 
lacks comprehensive design features such as public space, ceremonial entrances, pathways, or original streetlights. Finally, 
investigations have not been conducted to determine whether the property has the potential to yield information important in history 
or pre-history, therefore, National Register Criterion D can not be assessed at this time. 

MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 

Eligibility recommended 

Comments: 

Reviewer, OPS: 

Reviewer, NR Program:\~~ 

Page 8.2 
KCI Technologies, Inc. 
January 2000 

Eligibility Not Recommended:~ 

Date: Cf/ U /CXJ 
Date: l 0 \ tui.\ ()1) 



~ 9. Major Bibliographical References Survey No. M:32-11 

See Continuation Sheet 

10. Geographical Data 
Acreage of nominated property 

Quadrangle name Kensington, MD Quadrangle scale 1 :24,000 

Verbal boundary description and justification 
N/A 

List all states and counties for properties overlapping state or county boundaries 

state code county code 

state code county code 

11. Form Prepared By 
name/title Tim Tamburrino 

organization KCI Technologies, Inc. date January 2000 

street & number 10 North Park Drive telephone 410-316-7800 

city or town Hunt Valley state/zip Maryland,21030 

The Maryland Historic Sites Inventory was officially created by an Act of the Maryland Legislature to be 
found in the Annotated Code of Maryland, Article 41, Section 181 KA, 1974 supplement. 

The survey and inventory are being prepared for information and record purposes only and do not 
constitute any infringement of individual property rights. 

Return to: Maryland Historical Trust 
DHCP/DHCD 

100 Community Place 
Crownsville, MD 21032-2023 
410-514-7600 
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RESOURCE NAME: North Hills of Sligo Park 
SURVEY NO.: M:32-11 
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10. Geographical Data (Continued) 

Montgomery County Tax Map JP342, JP343, Subdivision 78 
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MARYLAND HISTORICAL TRUST 
STATE HISTORIC SITES INVENTORY FORM 
RESOURCE NAME: North Hills of Sligo Park 
SURVEY NO.: M:32-11 
ADDRESS: Bounded by Granvil! Drive, Colesville Road, and Brunett Avenue, Four Corners vicinity, Montgomery 

County 

Maryland Comprehensive Historic Preservation Plan Data Sheet 

Historic Context: 

MARYLAND COMPREHENSIVE PRESERVATION DATA 

Geographic Organization: 

Piedmont 

Chronological/Development Period Theme(s): 

Modern Period A.O. 1930-Present 

( Prehistoric/Historic Period Theme(s): 

Architecture, Landscape Architecture, and Community Planning 

RESOURCE TYPE: 

Category (see Section 3 of survey form): 

District 

Historic Environment (urban, suburban, village, or rural): 

Suburban 

Historic Function(s) and Use(s): 

Private Residence 

Known Design Source (write none if unknown): 

None 

Preparer: 
KCI Technologies, Inc. 
January 2000 
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